MEETING OF
THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom
(See below for more details) *
6:30 p.m. December 04, 2024
AGENDA

The Board’s action in these matters has been deemed to be quasi-judicial in nature.
If any person believes any member of the Board has a conflict of interest,
that issue should be raised at this point or it will be deemed waived.

I APPROVAL OF MINUTES

—

November 06, 2024

o
=
5

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS

93 Pleasant Street

111 State Street

179 Pleasant Street

33 Jewell Court

24 Market Street

213 Pleasant Street

765 Middle Street

137 New Castle Avenue

NN R =

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS (OLD BUSINESS)

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of Jane Vanni Meyers, owner, for property
located at 195 Washington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations
to an existing structure (renovate front entrance and door) as per plans on file in the Planning
Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 103 as Lot 78 and lies within the General
Residence B (GRB) and Historic Districts.

B. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of Jay Ganesh, LLC, owner, for property located
at 201 Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an
existing structure (installation of new siding to cover the existing brick, remove and replace
fencing, and associated site improvements) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 138 as Lot 33 and lies within the Character District 4-1.2
(CD4-L2) and Historic Districts.



AGENDA, Historic District Commission Meeting December 04, 2024 Page 2

C. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of RGA Investments, LLC, owner, for property
located at 342 Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to
an existing structure (re-roof the entire structure and replace all roof trim/detailing on the
mansard portion of the roof) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is
shown on Assessor Map 145 as Lot 15 and lies within the Character District 4-L1 (CD4-L1) and
Historic Districts.

D. Petition of Islington Street Properties, LLC, owner, for property located at 369-373
Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing
structure (replace the siding and windows on the structure) and the installation of HVAC
equipment (AC condensers) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is
shown on Assessor Map as Lot and lies within the Character District 4-L.2 (CD4-L2) and
Historic Districts.

IV.  PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Petition of Frederick and Sandra Wiese Revocable Trust, owners, for property located at
138 Gates Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing
structure (modifications to an originally approved design- changes to the siding and the omission
of water table trim) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 103 as Lot 54 and lies within the General Residence B (GRB) and Historic
Districts.

V. WORK SESSIONS (OLD BUSINESS)

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Work Session requested by Kevin Shitan Zeng Revocable
Trust of 2017, owner, for property located at 377 Maplewood Avenue, wherein permission is
requested to allow the demolition of the rear structure on the lot and the new construction of a
detached accessory dwelling unit as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property
is shown on Assessor Map 141 as Lot 22 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) and
Historic Districts.

B. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Work Session requested by PNF Trust of 2013, owner,
for property located at 266-278 State Street, wherein permission is requested to allow the
construction of a new four-story building, as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 107 as Lots 78, 79, 80 and lies within Character District 4
(CD-4), Downtown Overlay and the Historic Districts.

VI. ADJOURMENT

*Members of the public also have the option to join this meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting 1D
and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or copy
and paste this into your web browser:

https://usO6web.zoom.us/webinar/register/ WN_rAVVT40JQ5i3bO-BdhcQJA



https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_rAVVT40JQ5i3bO-BdhcQJA

MINUTES of
THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

6:30 p.m. November 06, 2024

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chair Reagan Ruedig; Vice-Chair Margot Doering; Members Jon
Wyckoff, Martin Ryan, Dr. Dan Brown, Dave Adams, and
Alternate Larry Booz

MEMBERS ABSENT: City Council Representative Rich Blalock

ALSO PRESENT: Izak Gilbo, Planner 1, Planning Department

City Council Representative Rich Blalock was not present. Alternate Larry Booz took a voting
seat for the evening. Chair Ruedig read the Requests to Postpone in to the record.

Mr. Wyckoff moved to postpone Public Hearings Old Business Petition A, 195Washington St;
Petition C, 201 Islington Street, Petition D, 342 Islington Street; Work Session A, 377
Maplewood Avenue; and Work Session B, 266-278 State Street to the December 4 meeting. Dr.
Brown seconded. The motion passed with all in favor, 7-0.

I APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. October 02, 2024
2. October 09, 2024

Vice-Chair Doering moved to approve both sets of minutes as submitted, seconded by Mr.
Wyckoff. The motion passed with all in favor, 7-0.

I1. ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS

Note: Items 2 and 3 were pulled for separate review and approval because they were more
complex than the other items.

1. 175 State Street

[Timestamp 5:04] The request was for approval to install shutters on the applicant’s condo unit.
Mr. Gilbo said the applicant wanted to recreate the original shutter and also wanted to attach the
shutters to the existing hardware on the building. He showed photos of the original hardware and
shutter and a rendering of the proposed shutter. Mr. Wyckoff said the shutters should be hung the
way they were shown, leaning against the building with the louvers pointing up and not down.
Mr. Adams agreed. Mr. Ryan asked if the shutters would really be placed on just half of the
building. The owner Duncan Craig was present and said his unit was a single-family one and
shared a wall with the other half of the building, so only his side would have shutters. Dr. Brown



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 2

asked Mr. Craig if he had an example of the tie-down. Mr. Craig said he did not but that it would
mimic the reproduction. Mr. Booz asked if the windows above the central hallway would have
shutters. Mr. Craig said only the windows on his side of the building would have shutters.

Stipulation: the louvers shall be pointing upward on the outside.
2. 238 Deer Street

[Timestamp 23:26] Mr. Gilbo said the Commission previously approved the HVAC condensers
in their current locations, but due to code, the condensers had to be on 18” snow stands to allow
for proper airflow underneath, which raised the height by a foot and a half. Chair Ruedig said a
few neighbors submitted comments and were not pleased that the condensers would be more
visible. It was further discussed. Mr. Adams suggested painting the condensers the color of the
wall behind them to make them blend in. The applicant’s representative architect Richard
Desjardins was present and said it was never their intent to misrepresent and explained that the
condensers were put in the rear of the property to be less visible to the public. He said they had
gone through multiple code changes that caused the size of the unit to be a bit bigger. He said the
condenser units on the snow stands would increase by less than 18 inches and would not be seen
from the public way. He said the owner/contractor and the manufacturer Mitsubishi said the
snow stands could not be removed, otherwise the product would have no warrantee, and he did
not think the manufacturer would allow the units to be painted because the paint could get
through the ventilation ports. Vice-Chair Doering asked if the screening railing could be changed
to improve the screening. Mr. Desjardins said the owner/contractor already purchased the railing
and that it matched the one on the other side of the stair tower. It was further discussed. Mr.
Desjardins said the condensers would not be seen with the current screening. Mr. Wyckoft said
the neighbor was looking out over a fence and a bunch of condensers, and whether the
condensers were elevated 12 inches instead of 18 inches didn’t make much of a difference. Mr.
Ryan agreed. He said the filters could not be painted anyway and the rail was very transparent.
Chair Ruedig said she sympathized with the neighbors but didn’t think it would make a huge
impact on the view of the building from the rest of the District. She suggested that the owner
speak to the neighbors.

Mr. Wyckoff moved to approve the item, seconded by Dr. Brown. The motion passed with all in
favor, 7-0.

3. 138 Gates Street

[Timestamp 41:21] Mr. Gilbo said there had been a miscommunication between the
Commission’s approval and what transpired in the renovation and that the biggest issue was that
the siding was not as stipulated in the original approval. Chair Ruedig said it was originally
presented that the replacement of wood siding would match to the weather, there would be a
scarf joints, and it would not be cedar. She said the applicant ended up not doing the “to
weather” dimensions and made other changes in terms of the water table, trim, and so on.

The project architect Anne Whitney was present and passed out samples of the LIFESPAN Solid
Select siding and the cedar. She said they decided to use the LIFESPAN siding and explained



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 3

why the scarf joints were her fault. She said the LIFESPAN would be better for the joints
because it came in longer lengths. She said they did minor changes to make sure the clapboard
matched the sills and casings. She said the mud sills were not mentioned previously, so she
eliminated them. The project contractor Joe Terravecchia was present and said he didn’t know
about the scarf joining component requirement. He said the mud sills were not original.

[Timestamp 49:58] The water table was discussed. Mr. Adams said the house must have had a
water table originally and that the Commission had been clear about the “to weather”
component. He said the joining of the clapboards was almost non-existent and that the building
now looked like a turn-of-the century one. He said he wasn’t comfortable that the applicant
passed on retaining the history of the material and consequently lost 80 percent of the only part
of the building the Commission had purview over. It was further discussed. Chair Ruedig said
the issue was not the debate about materials but the fact that the Commission stipulated that the
applicant use a particular wood and that it would be done to match the “to weather” that was
there before and that there would be scarf joints. She said the applicant should have returned to
the Commission if what was stipulated didn’t work. Ms. Whitney said there was a huge amount
of variation. Mr. Wyckoff said he thought the Commission’s disappointment about the house
looking brand new didn’t require someone to strip the whole house and redo it. He said he was in
support of approving it but asked that in the future, new construction windows not be allowed in
Colonial homes because all the trim had to be removed and the siding would end up getting
replaced. Chair Ruedig said the applicant could come back with another solution. She said a lot
of what was done missed the mark and that the Commission would like to see the mud sill go
back on because it was part of the building’s history. Mr. Ryan asked the applicant why the mud
sills were removed. Mr. Terravecchia said they were an afterthought in the building and were
installed in the late 1800s. Chair Ruedig said they were still a historic feature of the house. She
suggested having a public hearing at the December meeting to discuss a solution.

Vice-Chair Doering moved to deny the request, seconded by Mr. Ryan. The motion passed with
all in favor, 7-0.

4. 145 Maplewood Avenue

The request was to change the previously-approved sailboat sculpture’s granite hull material to a
red aluminum base one.

5. 50 Austin Street

The request was approval for the installation of three condenser units and an electric vehicle
(EV) charging station. Mr. Gilbo said the condenser units would be placed in the corner of the
building and the EV charger could either be attached to the structure or to a freestanding post.
He said the applicant had said he could supply a vegetative screening but that an appropriate
wooden screening could be stipulated in that location. Vice-Chair Doering said the EV charger
would be visible from Austin Street and that there wasn’t a lot of room for additional vegetation.
She said any screening would also be very visible. Mr. Wyckoff suggest a wooden screen. Chair
Ruedig suggested stipulating that the EV charger have its own separate stand so that the conduit
did not damage the brick. Dr. Brown asked that the applicant return to show the Commission any



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 4

lines or piping. Mr. Wyckoff said he wanted to know how the applicant would match the wood
screening to the building.

Stipulations:

1) The EV charger shall be on a standalone post and not affixed to the structure;

2) The applicant shall use an already-approved wood screening that shall be painted to match the
trim on the structure; and

3) If the applicant does not propose to run the lines directly into the building or underground, he
shall return with a line set diagram for an administrative approval.

6. 93 Pleasant Street

The request was approval for the proposed sign. Mr. Gilbo said the sign would have ground
lighting pointing up and that the Treadwell letters would be backlit. Mr. Wyckoff said that was
not allowed and that he was also disappointed that the sign was a generic modern one in the front
section of the restored building. Mr. Ryan agreed. The applicant’s representative architect Tracy
Kozak was present and said the sign was a solid opaque one with two layers, and the light was
between the layers and would come out the edges. Vice-Chair Doering said she was surprised by
the sign’s very modern font and design. The applicant Marie Bodie was present and said they
needed to get the foundation in before the frost. She said they could consider a different font for
the sign later. Chair Ruedig suggested that the Commission stipulate that the approval was only
for the foundation and base of the sign.

Stipulation: The sign’s design and lettering shall return for a future approval (the approval is
only for the foundation and base of the sign).

7. 369 Pleasant Street

The request was for a 6-ft cedar wood replacement fence that would be the same height and at
the same location. Mr. Wyckoff suggested that pressure-treated posts be used instead of cedar
posts. Mr. Gilbo said he would tell the applicant about the suggestion. It was further discussed.

Mr. Gilbo summarized the stipulations for Items 1, 5, and 6. (Items 4 and 7 had no stipulations).

Vice-Chair Doering moved to approve Items 1, 4, 5, 6 and 7 with their respective stipulations.
Dr. Brown seconded. The motion passed with all in favor, 7-0.

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS (OLD BUSINESS)

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of Jane Vanni Meyers, owner, for property
located at 195 Washington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior
renovations to an existing structure (renovate front entrance and door) as per plans on file in the
Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 103 as Lot 78 and lies within the
General Residence B (GRB) and Historic Districts.



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 5

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
The petition was postponed to the December 4 meeting.

B. Petition of Jeffrey Daniel Berlin, owner, for property located at 38 State Street, Unit
#4, wherein permission is requested to allow renovations to an existing structure (new roofing,
roof deck, and windows) and new construction to an existing structure (construct new penthouse
addition to access roof deck) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is
shown on Assessor Map 105 as Lot 10-4 and lies within the Character District 4 (CD4) and
Historic Districts.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 1:06:56] Nick Isaak of Isaak Design was present on behalf of the applicant, along
with the owner/applicant Jeffre Daniel Berlin. Mr. Isaak reviewed the petition and said they
wanted to recreate the building’s top floor because it was in terrible shape.

[Timestamp 1:11:58] Mr. Adams said the extended part of the building would be sided to make it
appear to have a gambrel roof frame with a thin glued-on brick material and asked whether the
applicant could get a fire code for that. Mr. Isaak agreed. Mr. Wyckoff asked if the cedar
planters would have a finish. Mr. Isaak said he proposed natural cedar planters with a height of a
railing. He said the siding below them would be an AZEK material painted white but that it was
currently yellow clapboard. Mr. Wyckoff asked why the applicant would make it stand out like
that. Mr. Isaak said they were encouraged at the last work session to do something interesting
with the top floor but that it could be painted yellow to match the brick. Mr. Ryan said he had
thought there would be more information on the windows. He asked if the triple window on the
back was wood or vinyl. Mr. Berlin said it was vinyl and that he didn’t know that vinyl was
opposed. Mr. Isaak said the window specs were called out on the window schedule in the packet.
It was further discussed. Vice-Chair Doering said the chimney was increasing in height and
asked if it was full brick. Mr. Isaak agreed. Chair Ruedig said the Commission received a letter
from the neighboring building’s representative Attorney Macdonald and that they wanted to
ensure that their chimney would stay functional. Mr. Isaak agreed that it would. Chair Ruedig
said her only concern was the vinyl windows. She said the Commission needed more
information on the window specs. Mr. Wyckoff said the proposed Pella windows would not last
and asked that another window be proposed. Mr. Adams asked how much exterior demolition
work was planned on the building other than the roof. Mr. Isaak said the cornice work would be
kept intact but part of it was missing and that they would replace a wooden eave. Mr. Adams
inferred that there would be no demolition work on the front or back walls. Mr. Berlin said he
only owned the top condo. It was further discussed. Mr. Adams asked if anyone in the building
had approached Mr. Berlin about whether the lower floors could support the work. Mr. Isaac said
his structural engineer said there would be no issues.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.

SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 6

No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mpr. Ryan moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application as presented, with the
following stipulation:

1. The windows shall return to the Commission for an administrative approval.

Mr. Wyckoff seconded the motion.

Mr. Ryan said the project would preserve the integrity of the District and would be consistent
with the special and defining character of the surrounding properties.

[Timestamp 1:26:25] Mr. Adams said he could not support the motion because the property was
so different than the other properties that led up to it. He said most of the rows in that block were
3-story buildings that had very little on their roofs, and the applicant was proposing to add a fifth
floor. Outside of the mechanical issues, he said there was also the precedent of going to the fifth
floor. He said the historic architecture in the town was all about precedent and that he did not
believe that the proposal captured the defining character of the surrounding properties. It was
further discussed. Chair Doering said it was a huge improvement on what was there now and fit
into the order of facades on the front side. Vice-Chair Doering said she wasn’t thrilled with what
was replacing the existing and that she understood Mr. Adams’ point.

The motion passed by a vote of 5-2, with Mr. Adams and Vice-Chair Doering voting in
opposition.

C. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of Jay Ganesh, LL.C, owner, for property
located at 201 Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to
an existing structure (installation of new siding to cover the existing brick, remove and replace
fencing, and associated site improvements) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 138 as Lot 33 and lies within the Character District 4-1.2
(CD4-L2) and Historic Districts.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
The petition was postponed to the December 4 meeting.

D. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Petition of RGA Investments, LL.C, owner, for property
located at 342 Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to
an existing structure (re-roof the entire structure and replace all roof trim/detailing on the
mansard portion of the roof) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is
shown on Assessor Map 145 as Lot 15 and lies within the Character District 4-L1 (CD4-L1) and
Historic Districts.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 7

The petition was postponed to the December 4 meeting.

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Petition of Wenberry Associates, LL.C, owner, for property located at 21 Congress
Street, wherein permission is requested to allow new construction to an existing structure
(construct roof top penthouse, construct storefronts along Haven Court and modify the Fleet
Street facade) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 117 as Lot 12 and lies within the Character District 5 (CD-5), Downtown Overlay
and Historic Districts.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 1:31:00] Project architect Tracy Kozak was present on behalf of the applicant. She
said they made several refinements and combined two projects into one package because the lots
were being merged into one lot and the buildings would become one building. She reviewed the
15 Congress Street building and said some of the changes were that the stair overrun was slid
down to serve both roofs, the roof on Congress Street was brought down to meet the J. J.
Newberry building, and a few windows were removed because the buildings would be
connected. She said the red brick on Haven Court would remain and be infilled with residential
windows. She said they would save the J. J. Newberry sign. She said more detail was added to
the copper bays and how they meet the cornice, and the granite base was changed. She noted that
the art work was withdrawn from the application and would return later. She said they added
refinements to the Fleet Street fagade by cladding the spandrel band between the 2" and 3™ floor
windows in copper and carrying the detail to tie the facades together. She said a granite base was
added under the store front windows. She said the windows were made taller on the Congress
Street facade and a horizontal transom band was added to the storefront surround, along with two
vertical pilasters. She reviewed the rooftop penthouse elevations.

[Timestamp 1:45:03] Mr. Adams asked what condition of the brickwork would be exposed when
the street was dug out. Ms. Kozak said there was no basement in the middle, so underpinning
and shoring would be required for the center portion of the wall. She said there was a concrete
foundation on the newer addition and that they had construction and engineering drawings on the
garage. She said the J. J. Newberry building would have to be shored up to excavate in some of
the areas. Mr. Adams asked what the inspiration was for the Juliet balconies on Congress Street.
Ms. Kozak said it was a recreation of what was seen in the 1860s photo. Mr. Wyckoff asked if
the balconies had a floor. Ms. Kozak said a steel grate was proposed but that they could do a
solid floor. Mr. Booz said the building had five windows in the 1860s photo but now had six.
Ms. Kozak said the 1860s building burned down ten years after it was built and the next building
was a Victorian one and taller and the windows were changed. Mr. Adams asked about the
cornice material. Ms. Kozak said it would be an AZEK material that would be painted in the
same profile as wood and that it would be structurally reinforced to not fall off.

[Timestamp 1:51:30] Ms. Kozak said the bottom brick level was bumped out about four inches
proud of the two stories due to a concrete foundation and they would clad the concrete and
salvage the brick. She discussed the alleyways and the Haven Court entrances and said they
would add copper awnings. Vice-Chair Doering said she had a problem with the bay window



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 8

bump out fagade across from Gilley’s Diner because she felt that it didn’t transition as well as
the first time. She said the Haven Court part of the J. J. Newberry building was not industrial or
modern but seemed more ornate and completely different than the other new building and
seemed out of context with how the rest of the project was arranged. Ms. Kozak said they were
bringing in some of the materials from One Congress Street to 15 Congress Street but not trying
to replicate anything. She said they made changes to Fleet Street that they felt were important to
create an inviting pedestrian way, and the industrial punched windows didn’t create that level of
welcoming, so they added the bay window form to the copper awnings. It was further discussed.
Ms. Kozak reviewed the windows and storefront materials. Mr. Wyckoff asked if it would be
successful to harvest bricks from the building. Ms. Kozak said the oldest bricks were from 1860
and the newest ones were from 1955, and the ones on Haven Court were different eras. It was
further discussed. Mr. Wyckoff asked if lighting was planned for the copper canopies on Fleet
Street. Ms. Kozak said they were not but probably should be. Mr. Ryan thanked the applicant for
keeping the sign. He said he didn’t think the whole project had to be one language from one
corner to the other and thought it was a positive thing that it was broken up a bit. He said the
applicant would have trouble with the brick work in the alleyway, but he thought it was basically
a good project. Mr. Booz agreed about the sign. Mr. Wyckoft agreed that not everything had to
match everywhere. He said the applicant did a good job of making the transition around the
corner very good by using the copper. Dr. Brown said he was excited that the applicant opened
up Haven Court. Vice-Chair Doering clarified that she was just having heartburn with an
industrial look and residential look on the same corner and had hoped there would be a transition
between the two because it was an exposed corner. Chair Ruedig said she appreciated that the
Fleet Street wall was simplified and thought the bay windows worked because they related to 55
Congress Street. Mr. Wyckoff agreed. Mr. Ryan said the fact that the art work was gone helped.
Ms. Kozak reviewed other changes on One Congress Street and the connecting of the buildings.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Dr. Brown moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application as presented, seconded
by Mr. Wyckolff.

Dr. Brown said the project would maintain the special character of the District and would have
compatibility of innovative technologies with surrounding properties. Chair Ruedig said it was a
huge improvement for a vastly underutilized part of the downtown and that it would open up a
connection between Market and Fleet Street. She said she appreciated all the thought and effort
put into the design to make it as pedestrian friendly as possible and to enliven that back area and
that it would be a huge benefit to the city and to the Historic District.

The motion passed by a vote of 6-1, with Vice-Chair Doering opposed.



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 9

2. Petition of Katherine Ann Bradford Revocable Trust 2020, owner, for property
located at 170-172 Gates Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations
to an existing structure (rebuild the existing garage, remove 1-story rear ell, relocate right side
entry door with a roof covering, replace windows and doors, and siding) as per plans on file in
the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 103 as Lot 19 and lies within
the General Residence B (GRB) and Historic Districts.

Mr. Adams recused himself from the petition.
SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 2:28:45] Project architect Anne Whitney was present on behalf of the applicant. She
said they wanted to rebuild the garage and remove the ell. She said the home was being
converted from a duplex into a single-family home and explained why the siding and windows
needed to be replaced. Mr. Wyckoff asked if the windows were new construction ones. Ms.
Whitney agreed and said the current ones were in poor condition. Mr. Wyckoff suggested using
the existing frames and putting in replacement windows. Ms. Whitney said they had to downsize
the windows. She said they would replace the aluminum siding on the driveway elevation in kind
with the front siding. She discussed more window changes, noting that she would have an entry
mudroom with a hip roof cover and replace the two windows there. She said they would remove
the one-story bump out on the rear elevation and put in a Marvin 15-light door. She said the
addition would be resided and have some windows replaced. Chair Ruedig said if the clapboards
weren’t holding the paint, there might be a moisture problem. Ms. Whitney said she would
install a vapor barrier. It was further discussed. Ms. Whitney said they wanted to replace the
garage and put a floating slab and some concrete around the edge of it.

[Timestamp 2:42:07] Mr. Wyckoff asked if the front door and sidelights were painted. Ms.
Whitney agreed and said it was just a single paned 2/2 window. Mr. Wyckoff asked if that was
appropriate for the house, noting that the house seemed like it was an 1810 house with 6/6
windows that were replaced in the late 19™ century. Ms. Whitney said the existing doors had two
glazed upper panels and were just single lights. Mr. Ryan asked what was under the aluminum
siding on the facade where the new windows were being placed. Ms. Whitney said it was old
clapboards and that they wanted to replace them because there were issues on the front and side
of not being able to keep the paint on, and she wanted to insulate the wall better. She said she
would replace the sheathing as needed.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mr. Ryan moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application as presented, seconded
by Vice-Chair Doering.



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 10

Mr. Ryan said the project would maintain the special character of the District and would be
compatible with the design of the surrounding properties.

Mr. Wyckoff said he could not support the motion because the house would have all new siding,
and it was a contributing property on Gates Street. He said he also had a problem with the 2/2
windows. Chair Ruedig said it was an all wood siding replacement and thought the 2/2 windows
were appropriate because they had been there for a long time.

The motion passed by a vote of 5-2, with Mr. Wyckoff voting in opposition and Mr. Adams
recused.

3. Petition of Noble’s Island Condominium Association, owner and Marc Schwanbeck,
applicant, for property located at S00 Market Street, wherein permission is requested to allow
exterior renovations to existing structures (blanket approval for the replacement of the residential
solariums) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor
Map 120 as Lot 2 and lies within the Character District 4-L1 (CD4-L1) and Historic Districts.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 2:48:17] The applicant and president of the condo association Marc Schwanbeck
was present. He reviewed the petition and said the newly installed solarium was the same as the
original solarium but did not have a horizontal crossbar, so the views would not be affected. Mr.
Ryan said it would be fine because the building was not a contributing one. Mr. Adams said he
appreciated that the applicant came in for a blanket approval because it simplified everything and
allowed the condo association to maintain a characteristic thing in their unique island of
architecture. He said the design fit in well with the simple lines of the condominiums.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Vice-Chair Doering moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application as presented.
Dr. Brown seconded.

Vice-Chair Doering said the project would conserve and enhance the property values for the
Noble’s Island Condominiums and would be consistent with their special and defining
characteristics.

The motion passed with all in favor, 7-0.

4. Petition of Thomas C. and Martha B. McGraw, owners, for property located at 411
The Hill, Unit #14, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 11

structure (replacement of all windows) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 118 as Lot 26 and lies within the Character District 4-L1
(CD4-L1), Downtown Overlay, and Historic Districts.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 3:01:52] Owners Tom and Martha McGraw were present to review the petition. Mr.
McGraw said the previously mixed-use property was now a residential one due to a zoning
change and that their dwelling was the only one in the complex that was residential. He said it
was renovated extensively because it used to be a mixed use unit and that replacement windows
were needed. He said the existing Pella windows were over 50 years old and in bad shape and
that they wanted to replace them with traditional Pella windows used on other historic structures.

[Timestamp 3:05:42] Mr. Wyckoff asked if the windows were replacement windows. Mr.
McGraw said they were Pella Traditional Reserve replacement windows, and he gave a brochure
to the Commission. Chair Ruedig said she didn’t see the arched window on the window schedule
and asked if it was being replaced. Mr. McGraw it was not, and the window was further
discussed. Mr. Wyckoff said full screens were not in the Commission’s guidelines. Mr. McGraw
said the contract had double hung full screens and that several buildings on The Hill had full
screens. Mr. Wyckoff said some people didn’t get the necessary permits, and it was further
discussed. Mr. Adams said there was an 8-light window proposed for the attic but said there
were no such thing in an 18™ century house and thought it was a poor attempt at making a 4/2
sash. He suggested a 4/1 window. Chair Ruedig said it would match what was there now and
suggested that Pella just replicate that. Half screens were further discussed. Ms. McGraw said
they would do half screens and asked if she and her husband would have to return if Pella said it
didn’t make sense to do the double hung.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.

SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION

No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mpr. Ryan moved to grant the Certificate of Approval with the following stipulations:

1. The grill pattern of the (2) attic windows shall be adjusted to 4/2 and the lights shall be
rectangular and vertical versus rectangular and horizontal as shown in the plans.
2. Half screens shall be used.

Mr. Wyckoff seconded.

Mr. Ryan said the project would preserve the integrity of the District and would be compatible
with the design of the surrounding properties.

The motion passed with all in favor, 7-0.



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 12

5. Petition of Islington Street Properties, LL.C, owner, for property located at 369-373
Islington Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing
structure (replace the siding and windows on the structure) and the installation of HVAC
equipment (AC condensers) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is
shown on Assessor Map as Lot and lies within the Character District 4-L.2 (CD4-L2) and
Historic Districts.

Note: Mr. Gilbo noted that the condensers were not included in the petition because he received
the specs late and did not have a chance to review it. He said their location might be exempt and
that only the siding and windows portion of the petition would be reviewed.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

[Timestamp 3:18:10] Scott Rafferty was present and said he was a condo owner but also
represented the Islington Place Condominium Association. He said the requested windows were
only for Unit 371A and were proposed to be the Pella LIFESTYE series in a wood aluminum
clad, white, with no grids. He noted that the building had various windows and that all of them
would stay the same size except for the one on the far left on the residential unit. He said the
back window would be removed for the condenser and that they wanted to replace the siding
with a finished wood product, LP SmartSide. He said the trim and corner boards would be white
AZEK and the wood would be replaced as needed. He said the asbestos was removed so that the
current conditions underneath could be seen.

[Timestamp 3:21:48] Vice-Chair Doering asked for more detail about the siding product. Mr.
Rafferty said it was a sheathing product made with a resin and wood fibers. It was further
discussed. Mr. Adams asked if it came in a material other than a textured one. Mr. Rafferty said
it was a smooth version of the cedar texture. Mr. Booz asked what the product’s advantage was
over primed pine or cedar. Mr. Rafferty said it was rot and insect resistant and had more
longevity than wood siding. Mr. Adams said he walked around the building and saw what was
underneath and thought he was looking at the original cladding of the building, including corner
boards. He said the water table had a window sill protrusion on it that was snapped out. He asked
what Mr. Rafferty would do there. Mr. Rafferty said they would run it all the way down, and it
was further discussed. He said they wanted to do an AZEK composite material throughout the
building and around the windows so that they did not rot. Mr. Adams asked about the entablature
under the shelf on either gable side and asked if it would be left like that. Mr. Rafferty said they
were trying to keep the gable end as best they could and would replace anything with wood
except for the siding around the windows and corner boards. Mr. Adams said a window on the
first floor on the left under the suspended bay looked like it was pasted onto the building. Mr.
Rafferty said the siding would be replaced if it was coming off. Vice-Chair Doering asked if the
front window would be replaced with something the same size. Mr. Rafferty agreed. Vice-Chair
Doering said she had issues with the AZEK and the proportions of that window and that leaving
the divot in the front facade didn’t sit right with her. Mr. Ryan asked if the siding was lap siding
or just planks. Mr. Rafferty said it was clapboard. It was further discussed. Chair Ruedig said
vinyl might be an option in order to save the original materials underneath and the painted sign.
Mr. Adams said he’d like the sashes in the front of the building to be straightened out, and if
they were replaced, he would be comfortable with a vinyl siding. Mr. Rafferty said the condo



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 13

association owned those. He said the existing clapboards were not worth saving and the
association wanted a vinyl clapboard because it was more affordable. It was further discussed.
Mr. Ryan said most of the issues being discussed should be answered in the application and that
more details were needed. He said the application was incomplete. Chair Ruedig said a site visit
could be done but winter was coming and there were holes in the building. She said the
replacement widows were acceptable but asked if a 2/2 version was priced out to replicate what
was there for most of the windows. Mr. Rafferty said he could do that. Vice-Chair Doering said
the Commission could approve some things and give the applicant some feedback so that the
other owners could discuss it. She suggested putting clapboards on the front facade and vinyl on
the rest and to not put AZEK on the front except where the building met the moisture of the
ground. She asked that the applicant provide more information on the wood around the windows.
It was further discussed. Mr. Adams said he wasn’t sure where that would put the water table
issue and didn’t think he could support the application because of the oriel window under the
bay. Chair Ruedig said the Commission could approve the replacement of all the windows
except for the two on the front and then continue with the rest of the issues at a later meeting.

Chair Ruedig opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one spoke, and Chair Ruedig closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Vice-Chair Doering moved to grant the Certificate of Compliance for the replacement Pella
LIFESTYLE 2/2 half screen windows on the side and rear facades of the building. She said the
rest of the changes would be subject to the next hearing, where the applicant was encouraged to
take advantage of the Commission’s offer to put vinyl siding around the other facades of the
building to save money so that the front fagade could have wood clapboards as well as the
AZEK asked for and a window that was appropriate on that side of the building. She said the
trim around the windows could be AZEK on the back and sides.

Mr. Adams seconded the motion.

Mr. Ryan said he could not support the application because it was incomplete and he thought the
double hung window on the front facade was wrong.

Vice-Chair Doering said the project would conserve and enhance property values. Regarding the
front of the building, she said the Commission was attempting to keep the special and defining
characteristics of the location.

The motion passed by a vote of 6-1, with Mr. Ryan voting in opposition to the motion.

V. WORK SESSIONS (OLD BUSINESS)



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 14

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE - Work Session requested by Kevin Shitan Zeng
Revocable Trust of 2017, owner, for property located at 377 Maplewood Avenue, wherein
permission is requested to allow the demolition of the rear structure on the lot and the new
construction of a detached accessory dwelling unit as per plans on file in the Planning
Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 141 as Lot 22 and lies within the General
Residence A (GRA) and Historic Districts.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
The petition was postponed to the December 4 meeting.

B. REQUEST TO POSTPONE - Work Session requested by PNF Trust of 2013, owner,
for property located at 266-278 State Street, wherein permission is requested to allow the
construction of a new four-story building, as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 107 as Lots 78, 79, 80 and lies within Character District 4
(CD-4), Downtown Overlay and the Historic Districts.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
The petition was postponed to the December 4 meeting.
VI.  WORK SESSIONS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Work Session requested by Joan A. Schorsch Revocable Trust of 2014, owner, for
property located at 53 Pray Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations
to an existing structure (rebuild rear porch into a screened porch with roof deck, add skylights to
the rear 1-story addition and relocate the existing fence with a new gate) as per plans on file in
the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 102 as Lot 40 and lies within
the Waterfront Business (WB) and Historic Districts.

WORK SESSION

[Timestamp 3:56:02] Project architect Jennifer Ramsey was present on behalf of the applicant,
along with Ben Ojay. Ms. Ramsey said they wanted to rebuild the existing side porch as a screen
porch and adjust the roof plane so that it could have a roof deck. She said they would remove
one window for a new patio door onto the deck and would rebuild and set back the existing fence
in front of the porch. She said there was a small bump out on the back of the building that had a
kitchen and they wanted to put six skylights on, so it would be a 4-pitch roof. A metal roof was
further discussed. Chair Ruedig asked how old the addition was. Mr. Ojay said it wasn’t as old as
the house. Mr. Adams said he didn’t think the ell dated back to the first period of the house. He
said odd things were happening to the gable attic windows and said the deck was in a well in the
roof. He asked about a cover. Ms. Ramsey said they discussed copper downspouts. She said they
would probably rebuild the square porch columns and leave them square. Mr. Wyckoff said there
was room to increase the pitch on the ell in the back, and it was further discussed. Vice-Chair
Doering said the Commission got communication from the public about privacy concerns and
the fact that the deck location overlooked other people’s backyards. She asked if the buyers
would take that into consideration and maybe have an open railing on the side or planters that



MINUTES, Historic District Commission Meeting November 6, 2024 Page 15

might give an illusion of privacy. Ms. Ramsey said they could meet with them. She said she
would return for a public hearing and bring more details.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Dr. Brown moved to close the work session, seconded by Mr. Wyckoff. The motion passed with
all in favor, 7-0.

A few administrative items were discussed concerning the revised guidelines and incomplete
applications.

VII. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 10:41 p.m.

Submitted,

Joann Breault
HDC Meeting Minutes Taker



10.

HDC

ADMINISTRATIVE
APPROVALS

December 04, 2024

93 Pleasant Street -Recommended Approval
111 State Street -Recommended Approval
179 Pleasant Street -Recommended Approval
33 Jewell Court -Recommended Approval
24 Market Street -Recommended Approval
213 Pleasant Street -Recommended Approval
765 Middle Street -Recommended Approval
137 Northwest Street -Recommended Approval
442-444 Islington Street -Recommended Approval

95 Daniel Street -Recommended Approval



1. 93 Pleasant Street -Recommended Approval

Background: The applicant is seeking approval for the installation of signage and minor
changes to a previously approved design:

SHIFT DOOR AND ADD WINDOW AT COURT ST 3RD FLOOR WEST PORCH

CHANGE LOUVER TO WINDOW & SHUTTER, AT 1ST FLOOR CENTRAL ADDITION

RAISE 1ST FLOOR WINDOWS AND BRICK BAND AT SE ADDTION BY 5"

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED "PAINTED METAL FASCIAS" WILL BE ZINC COATED COPPER
MOVE ROOFTOP GENERATOR FURTHER BACK FROM ROOF EDGE

ALIGN PARKING GARAGE DOOR AT EXTERIOR WALL OPENING AS ORIGINALLY APPROVED
RELOCATE PROPOSED WROUGHT IRON FENCE FROM COURT ST STONE WALL TO REAR
RETAINING WALL.

ADD WOOD FENCE, TREES & PLANTINGS ALONG EAST PROPERTY LINE.

Staff Comment: Recommended Approval

Stipulations:




93 PLEASANT STREET
RENOVATIONS & ADDITION

DRAWING LIST

P0.1 COVER

P1.0B LANDSCAPE PLAN - PROPOSED

P1.3 ROOF PLAN

P1.7 PERSPECTIVE VIEW - SE

P1.8 PERSPECTIVE VIEW - SW

P1.10 SOUTH ELEVATION - FRONT (COURT ST)
P1.11 EAST ELEVATION - SIDE

P1.12 NORTH ELEVATION - REAR

HDC ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL: REVISIONS TO PREVIOUSLY APPROVED APPLICATION:

SHIFT DOOR AND ADD WINDOW AT COURT ST 3RD FLOOR WEST PORCH

CHANGE LOUVER TO WINDOW & SHUTTER, AT 1ST FLOOR CENTRAL ADDITION

RAISE 1ST FLOOR WINDOWS AND BRICK BAND AT SE ADDTION BY 5"

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED "PAINTED METAL FASCIAS" WILL BE ZINC COATED COPPER
MOVE ROOFTOP GENERATOR FURTHER BACK FROM ROOF EDGE

ALIGN PARKING GARAGE DOOR AT EXTERIOR WALL OPENING AS ORIGINALLY APPROVED
RELOCATE PROPOSED WROUGHT IRON FENCE FROM COURT ST STONE WALL TO REAR
RETAINING WALL.

. ADD WOOD FENCE, TREES & PLANTINGS ALONG EAST PROPERTY LINE.

COVER
93 PLEASANT STREET 4

“ _ 7 ‘.“
11/15/2024 ARCOVE

COPYRIGHT © 2022

P0.1




#75

[Re | 3[rudbeckia fuigida ‘Goldstrum® |Goldstrum Biack Eyed Susan |2 QT

L= ab

[RnH 5]Rudbe{§(ja nitida ‘Herbstsonne’ |Herbstson!le |1 Gal EX. STEPS #214 m FENCE
STORAGE AREA — 9 (] NEW T+G CEDAR FENCE TO

DRIP EDGE TO WALL BUILDING CORNER

TRANSFORMER PAD

TO MATCH EX. IN STYLE + TEXTURE + SET BELOW GRAD

NEW WALL FOR GARAGE- \ ™ SQ} /BEGIN 6 HT. T+G GREEN ~ b (PAINTED FOREST GREEN)
—_— 6-RYP ABOVE GARAGE WALL N\ 7 PAINTED CEDAR FENCE AT PIL JO STEP DOWN W/ GRADE
% 22-DP ————————— — / EXPOSED LEDGE, (TYP el REMO%E£X. ARBORVITAE
X GATETO 5-AMT ] / e a7 ol SOFTEN EX. SLOPE
— =2 e oo & 6-CFF _EX. CONCRETE BLOCK WAL
i E i /_/"
MAIL BOX .| 8% v i — ' .
4-RYF} HANDICAP REMP T EX_ CONCRETE WALL TO BE CAPPED WY . ©
RAMP ENDS 13.epif—"V- HANDRAILS STONE + WROUGHT IRON GUARDRAIL
_ | SMALL UTILITY SPACE W/
DRIP EDGE (TYP ) = | GREPER STONE " EX.HEDGE
2-PKW ~3 GRANITE TREADS (6.83" RISERS) Vi
3-PPT é -AML k . : 12-AMH - L4
< 10-8BG 79 PORCH (ARCH. STONE SURFACE) ”-7 ™\ 9-AMH »-OPEN AREA—~
4 STORY BRICK 0-AMT -
: ‘1“302’\‘;’; FF. 28.93 5 3" 12" x 48" GRANITE VENEER (TYP) 9-AMH )
7.A0S ]| I 3 z RAILING BY ARCH. NEW WALL TO MATCH HT EDGE OF UNDERGROUND 25;?@ PROPERTY LINE
4-CWB N 8-A03 GRANITE TOP CAP (STEPPING DOWN) OF EX. GARAGE WALL - 5-R-NH S-CEF. _——
5-CWB  (THERMAL FINISH) / FORMER WALL  ~~~me = 2-7"GRANITE TREADS "0 —FENCE AT P/L (TBD)
5-PPT RICK WALK pyrytl RAIL BY ARCH. {~YARD DRAIN SET IN CONCRETE § |& 7" GRANITE TREAD SET! g aniq PROPOSED
T s GRANITE STEPS:/ STEPPING STONE BY ENG (TYP) FLUSH WITH PORCH B STORMWATER
e e wmoowwew rve) T ] ol T Ry ot oA
4-CVM PROPOSED __f e 3-GMB 9.AB 3 - " ENG. DOCS)
11-BBG FLAG POLE 7 2-AMT// 7 13.GMB S~ 7| 19-BAG 3-RF £l / EX. TEMPLE WALL
7-PKW M/ ! 10-GMB //] / EX. TE! =
POSED T-AMLI _NEW WALL il = e e ———— -
E TRAP = ot - D D STONE o = PN S - bttt et
- : L Ol - LANDING _ I ) i 4
—_ s : = - {HRE-BUILT WALL ENDS AT ‘
o i 4= /i HEHe: | | TEMPLE WALL
. .-_ fri s T d : '_j,___———i
1 O VéR,CK WALK~ EX. WALL 33BGG - 5-AMT 5-AMT| 5 AMT DRAIN COVER (TYP. - SEE CIVIL DOCS SIDEWALK [
—e=d a— — 1 = |- I
= : ey 3 GATE LL NEW WALLS TO RE-USE + MATCH "\ ; g, t_al stgj_:?x_\ S _APPROX CURB ¢
V) 7-DIG 9-GMB BIKE/RACKS (2) \ TONE, PATTERN OF EX. WALL o-GMB—2 SQ. STEPPING STONES IN LAWN
s ‘ 5-RYP 6-CWB PROPOSED IRON FENCE -COBBLESTONE DRIVEWAY (SEE/NOTES)
W 5-ABI — || APD NEW GRANITE CURB, TIE-IN W/ EX. CURB + TAPER TO PROPOSED WALL
. o " UT EX. GRANITE BASE AT FENCE TO CREATE CLEAN END/ GRANITE
/ 4 PROPOSED : :
o eom COURT STREET

12" W. ROUNDED RIVER STONEl

ACCESS GATE

RELOCATED SIGN "STRAWBERRY BANK ~
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX ~ MARKET SQUARE"

s T T

SET GARAGE

PROPOSED————— *

OPEN AREA &
ADDITIONAL

REMOVE METAL
FENCE BEHIND

DOOR BACK TO
EXTERIOR WALL

COURT ST WALL &
REPLACE WITH
ADDITIONAL
TREES &
PLANTINGS

P1.0

TREES

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

HOTEL TREADWELL

11/15/2024

\. ’/
R, . 4
ARCOVE

COPYRIGHT © 2022


Tracy.kozak
Highlight

Tracy.kozak
Highlight

Tracy.kozak
Highlight

Tracy.kozak
Highlight

Tracy.kozak
Highlight

Tracy.kozak
Highlight


, TYP

)

42" CABLE GUARDRAIL (AS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED

—

—

&2
~
o~
=

C

\

ROOF DECK

36" TALL

PANTERS, TYP

ROOF DECK

/

|

N

,PTD

METAL PIPE GUARDRAIL

36"

e || = |

STAIR
OVERRUN

2019

i

— VY

Il

GENERATOR

o]

e e e e e e e e

32'

116" =1'-0"

GRAPHIC SCALE

16'

8!

ol

HOTEL TREADWELL

11/15/2024

ROOF PLAN

P1.3

ARCOVE

ROOF LEGEND

DOWNSPOUT

DS

ARCHITECTS

COPYRIGHT © 2022


Tracy.kozak
Rectangle


AL

[=]
=
o
m
o
=
=
=
2
o
x
e
o
[a2]
[m]
i
=
o
-
<
[=]
=
<
-
I
o
Ll
==
(o]
<<
Ll
==
=
o
=
=
=
=]
L
2]
<<
24

PERSPECTIVE VIEW - SE
93 PLEASANT STREET

P1.7

11/15/2024

93 PLEASANT STREET

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801



HHHHHHAARAHAA

i

EXTEND IRON FENCE TO CORNER

LOWERED GRADE 1' AT
BASEMENT AREA WELL

SHIFT DOOR & ADD WINDOW

GARAGE DOOR LOCATED TO
EXTERIOR WALL™

EXTEND GRANITE WALL DOWN
TO RAMP GRANITE PAVERS

ADD 2 BALUSTERS

STRAIGHTEN & SHORTEN GRANITE
RETAINING WALL FOR WIDER RAMP

ADD 2 GRANITE RISERS & LANDING,
SHIFT STEPS LEFT FOR WIDER RAMP

= M CED LOVERWTH
= . DOUBLE HUNG WINDOW AND
SHUTTER

P1.8

ROOF OVERRUN FOR
e EGRESS STAIR

= RAISED WINDOW HEAD HEIGHT AND
~— ALIGNED BRICK RUNNING BOND

PERSPECTIVE VIEW - SW

HOTEL TREADWELL s

93 PLEASANT STREET - ARCOVE
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 COPYRIGHT ©2022



CABLE GUARDRAIL BEYOND
SHIFT DOOR & ADD WINDOW ZINC SHINGLE SIDING (AS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)

37/8"

-2'-37/8"

Eé SHINGLE SIDING

EGRESS STAIR OVERRUN, ZINC

/META:‘L GUARDRAIL BEYOND, PTD gf_p . i 5
AVERAGE ROOF HEIGHT w2
= SYNTH. SLATE * &
S SHINGLES =
THIRD (EXIST). S
50'- 11 5/8" = . |:/S_ _3RD(SHORT
il L ZIE 48'- 8"
L alab
G}ZNDﬁXJSIL _ o x| %3
40'-51/8" B 2 B 2ND
T 37'-10"
1 o GRADE PLANE
ST EusTS | ) i i i} e
28'-111/8" - &
==8= — — — REPLACED LOUVER WITH 1ST

DOUBLE HUNG WINDOW AND
SHUTTER ALIGNED BRICK RUNNING BOND
ADD 2 RISERS & LANDING, SHIFT STEPS LEFT FOR WIDER DRIVE RAMP

LOWER CURB AT
WINDOW WELL BY 1'

27! . Oll

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

™ —

0 8
P11 SOUTH ELEVATION - FRONT (COURT ST)

16'

HOTEL TREADWELL

11/15/2024

COPYRIGHT © 2022



SYNTH SLATE SHINGLES (TYP) ——

EXTERIOR LIGHTING LEGEND B

m

L1 EXTERIOR LIGHTING - WALL SCONCE

EXTERIOR LIGHTING - HANGING LIGHT

nn
r [
w N

EXTERIOR LIGHTING - SOFFIT COVE LIGHT

m
-
N

EXTERIOR LIGHTING - EMERGENCY LIGHT

COURT STREET

EGRESS STAIR OVERRUN

ZINC SHINGLES

RAISED WINDOW HEAD HEIGHT &

I

LIGNED BRICK RUNNING BOND

P1.11

 vemsceroor e @, 7|
CABLE GUARDRAIL ??
(ASPREVIOUSLY =+
APPROVED)
o '3RD NE
R
_2ND NE
37'- 1
i W 2 < GRADE PLA}
ﬂ
1ST NE
27" -
GRAPHIC SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
0' 8 16' 32'
EAST ELEVATION - SIDE
HOTEL TREADWELL X
11/15/2024 ARCOVE

ARCHITECTS

COPYRIGHT © 2022



EGRESS STAIR OVERRUN WITH

ZINC SHINGLES
PAINTED METAL DOOR
A ——
Aiiév 7777777777777777
I
3RDNEW o
48| - 8" Eg
3 | 9
INDNEW | N
37'- 10" ~ ;
GRADE PLANE € \/Pr——-—- ,
@ 200" N _
1STNEW ™ & —
27| - Oll
RAISED WINDOW HEAD
HEIGHT & ALIGNED BRICK

RUNNING BOND

42" CABLE GUARD RAIL

48" CABLE GUARD RAIL AT

GENERATOR BEYOND ‘
e
- —_— I e = E!\
M ED il T il M M M-I
AN i i I W= BN R4[SIRY 2 A E _ THIRD (EXIST
= = — = = = = = _ _ _ . 50'-11 5/8"
WH =K WK 1] 0l e TR MK ___2ND (EXIST
- — 40'-51/8"
L liNI ] % T _Vm “‘ ﬂ
= B 1ST NEW 4
27' - OII
EXISTING RETAINING WALL
IN FRONT OF FACADE
EXISTING RETAINING WALL/BUILDING
IN FRONT OF FACADE
EXTERIOR LIGHTING LEGEND
EL1| EXTERIOR LIGHTING - WALL SCONCE
EXTERIOR LIGHTING - HANGING LIGHT
EL3| EXTERIOR LIGHTING - SOFFIT COVE LIGHT P1 1 NORTH ELEVATION - REAR
HOTEL TREADWELL L ’
EL4 EXTERIOR LIGHTING - EMERGENCY LIGHT R o
11/15/2024 ;‘.-RCOVE

ARCHITECTS

COPYRIGHT © 2022



2. 111 State Street -Recommended Approval

Background: The applicant is seeking approval for minor changes to a previously approved
design:

1. INFILL OPENING AT SOUTHWEST GABLE PORCH WITH A DOUBLE HUNG
WINDOW TO MATCH EXISTING WINDOWS BELOW

2. CHANGE DOUBLE HUNG WINDOW AT WEST GABLE TO A STAINED GLASS
FIXED SASH.

Staff Comment: Recommended Approval

Stipulations:




111 STATE STREET
ADDITION & RENOVATION

REVISIONS TO PREVIOUSLY APPROVED APPLICATION

1. INFILL OPENING AT SOUTHWEST GABLE PORCH WITH A DOUBLE HUNG
WINDOW TO MATCH EXISTING WINDOWS BELOW

2. CHANGE DOUBLE HUNG WINDOW AT WEST GABLE TO A STAINED GLASS
FIXED SASH.

DRAWING LIST

H0.1 COVER

H2.4 SHEAFE STREET ELEVATION
H2.6 GABLE DETAIL

COVENTRY REALTY, LLC

HDC- Revision 7

ADMINISTRATIVE

APPROVAL COVER
DECEMBER 2024 Ol =91 STATE STREET

SCALE:
11/15/2024




RAISED GABLE
12" FRIEZE BOARD

ROOF ACCESS PAINTED

METAL RAILING @ 42", 1

REPLACE GABLE WITH SHED DORMER & SKIRT ROOF
TO MATC T SHED DORMER

1/2" D. BALUSTERS @ Hg 6
19" O.C. :
INFILL OPENING WITH WINDOW,
DH 2-0 X 4-0
% /
M~ >
© Il &
3\0 o ==4 nuﬂw
2 U | BHA-9%3
«© { =17
: HH
2
- | O — =
o = ] =
= 2 = - =[|uE
Jla = H = =
3% = | = =
> A
w < = =
o - == i = =
a = = = \
= “
AV N
EXISTING ‘ RENOVATION EXISTING

&XISTING TO REMAIN

12" SKIRT BOARD
RAISE EXISTING WINDOWS 1'-0"

\
8" CORNER BOARDS J

ﬁ

SHEAFE STREET ELEVATION

H2.4

111 STATE STREET

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"
11/15/24

By
ARCOVE

COPYRIGHT © 2022



WOOD SHINGLES & TRIM TO MATCH EXISTING
NEW ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

= \WOOD CROWN & FASCIA TOP MATCH EXISTING

CLAPBOARD TO MATCH EXISTING

1X4 CASING

2'X4' DOUBLE HUNG WINDOW

NEW ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOF

— WOOD CROWN & FASCIA TO MATCH EXISTING

/—— WOOD TRIM TO MATCH EXISTING

GABLE DETAIL - SHEAFE STREET

INFILL OPENING WITH WINDOW,
DH 2-0 X 4-0

% PHASE Il LEVEL 3C
> 43'-91/8"
| B PHASE Il LEVEL 2D
o 2 34'-10 3/8"
Level 1 -
24'- 3"

H2.6

111 STATE STREET

SCALE: 1/4"=1-0"
11/15/24

7 COVE

ARCHITECTS

COPYRIGHT © 2022



INFILL CASED OPENING WITH 2'X4' DOUBLE HUNG
WINDOW, TO MATCH OTHER WINDOWS

1!_9u -—

\

STAINED LEADED GLASS FIXED SASH, SET INTO
WOOD FRAME WITH TRIM TO MATCH OTHER
WINDOWS

30"

H3.2

VIGNETTE - SHEAFE ST WEST

111 STATE STREET

SCALE:
11/15/2024

VE

ARCHITECTS

ARCO

COPYRIGHT © 2022



3. 179 Pleasant Street -Recommended Approval

Background: The applicant is seeking approval for the removal of some existing chain link
fencing and the installation of fencing to surround the property (with a mix of wood and
iron).

Staff Comment: Recommend Approval

Stipulations:




179 PLEASANT STREET - HDC APPLICATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE
APPROVAL

The residents at 179 Pleasant Street have two labrador retrievers and are
interested in enclosing the perimeter of the property for their safety.

We respectfully submit this application for administrative approval for
various perimeter fencing conditions at 179 Pleasant Street.

The current site contains a variety of fencing conditions consisting of
wood, chain link, and iron. All elevations of fencing contained herein are
drawn as viewed from the abutter’s property. Our design approach is as
follows:

WOOD

We propose to utilize the wood fence design that abuts the Historic
Governor Langdon House in the locations where we are proposing a
wood fence.

CHAIN LINK

We propose to replace the chain link and additional areas along the back
of the property with an aluminum picket fence. The owner has reviewed
this option with the Landon property administration and they are in favor
of this approach.

IRON

We propose to repair and maintain the existing historic iron fence and
gate along Pleasant Street and extend the iron design elements along the
length of the sidewalk. We propose a gate at the driveway, modeled
after the historic existing gate, to enclose the property for the labrador
retrievers. The proposed front fence would be a full iron design
fabricated by New England Castings, LLC and installed by Knight Welding.

Per the Zoning Ordinance: We have designed all fence locations to be
below six feet in height, and the historic fence along Pleasant Street is
below four feet in height.

Section 10.515.13 Measurement Rules; Fences not over 4 feet in height
shall be exempt from front yard requirements, and fences not over 6 feet
in height shall be exempt from side and rear yard requirements.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Con——

Carla Goodknight, AIA  Principal, CJ Architects LLC
Representing owners: Mill Pond View, LLC.

179 PLEASANT STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

B

VIEW OF EXISTING IRON POSTS

VIEW OF EXISTING FRONT FENCES & GATE

\

VIEW OF EXISTING WOOD FENCE

AGENDA & EXISTING CONDITIONS

HDC APPLICATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL: DECEMBER 4, 2024

VIEW OF EXISTING CHAINLINK FENCE

CJ ARCHITECTS

1.0



'f[] EXISTING LANGDON WOOD FENCE

The existing wood fence along the Historic Governor Langdon
property, as shown in AREA 1, will remain.

DI EXISTING CHAINLINK & MULTIPLE STRUCTURE ON STRUCTURE ON
WOOD FENCES LANGDON PROPERTY  EXISTING LANGDON FENCE ~ LANGDON PROPERTY EXISTING CHAINLINK FENCE

2A . ; '
We propose to replace the existing chain link fence in AREA 2A e e e e v : 2 L N . S - i e
with a six foot high aluminum picket fence. The owner has N\ e 3 - 2 fﬁ”ﬁwu )

7 : e : % 3 i

\\EXISTING WOOD

reviewed this option with the Landon property administration and CEENCE 2 GATE

they are in favor of this approach.

2B
We propose to replace the existing wood fence in AREA 2B with a A : 7 | \
six foot high aluminum picket fence and access gate. N - & . e B

2C
We propose to replace the various existing wood fences in AREA EXISTING IR
2C with a six foot high aluminum picket fence. WOOD FE

‘ EXISTING WOOD FENCE & OPENINGS

PLEASANT STR EXISTING MULTIPLE WOOD FENCES

In AREA 3, we propose to construct a duplicate wood fence along
the abutter’s property that will be modeled after the wood fence
design that abuts the Historic Governor Langdon House in AREA 1.

’ EXISTING OPENING

EXISTING IRON & WOOD FENCE

In AREA 4, we propose to repair and maintain the existing historic 0 10 20 30 40FT

iron fence and gate along Pleasant Street and extend the iron
design elements along the length of the sidewalk. We propose a
gate at the driveway, modeled after the historic existing gate, to
enclose the property for the labrador retrievers. The proposed
front fence would be a full iron design fabricated by New England
Castings, LLC and installed by Knight Welding.

Not for Construction

179 PLEASANT STREET SUMMARY & LANDSCAPE PLAN

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE HDC APPLICATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL: DECEMBER 4, 2024 CJ ARCHITECTS 2 U] O




\ \ EXISTING FENCE TO REMAIN

PLAN

1/16'=1-0"

g1l
1
\ o |

77-6"
EXISTING TO REMAIN

EXISTING ELEVATION TO REMAIN

1/16'=1-0"

ELEVATION
STRUCTURE ON - STRUCTURE O',\}
LANGDON PROPERTY LANGDON PROPERTY
r%:‘#.' B 20009

b CARRIAGE\\
\  HOUSE
l\‘
A
\\ >
u#;vwﬁm,q‘

g = \

1 EXISTING LANGDON WOOD FENCE

179 PLEASANT STREET
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Ei

DON FENCE

|
|
|

PROPOSED FENCES

HDC ADMINISTRATIVE APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL: DECEMBER 4, 2024

VIEW OF EXISTING FENCE TO REMAIN

LOCATION & DIMENSIONAL INFORMATION

CJ ARCHITECTS 3 ° O




‘\— PROPOSED FENCE

PLAN
1/16=1-0"
. / zz / W PROPOSED ALUMINUM FENCE:
MANUFACTURER: AMERISTAR FENCE

ELEVATION | ¥0.C-Nom. 1 y  STYLE: ECHELON Il CLASSIC
1/16'=1-0" T 174" FORERUNNER™ Rail COLOR BLACK
11 A A T DIMENSIONS: 8'-0" WIDTH x 670" HEIGHT
IR
;i? / 1"[4 x .065 Wall Picket
| OO T
2 Nom. J »i L 3%" TYPICAL
§W
S STRUCTURE ON ELEVATION §
LAFTTGRDLgLUPERED%ERTY LANGDON PROPERTY v §
=~
- §I§ /v’ ; \L ’ @ /W@\/:\\\\ [ - E
/@ A \/‘//;,\ —X C iy | -
A\ \  ANNEX ° 4’} / ;\\ =
v\\ \ MANSION \ /‘/” | \‘CONNECQOR
'Y
VIEW OF EXISTIN MAL CHAINLIN FENCJ’E
ZA PROPOSED FENCE FACING LANGDON MANSION LOCATION & DIMENSIONAL INFORMATION

179 PLEASANT STREET PROPOSED FENCES

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE HDC ADMINISTRATIVE APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL: DECEMBER 4, 2024 CJ) ARCHITECTS 4 . O




10°-0” Width

2%" (Hinge Clearance) —=| |=— l=— 2%" (Hinge Clearance)

N ™ !
I\z’{_n | _ K \\Ic// i T A ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ ﬁ ﬂ ﬂ A ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ/l%"FORERUNNER”’Rail
'\., [ g LI [T o i
PLAN 2 il ] j//_/‘ g'ate Upright
1/16"=1-0 'én
3 £ = 1"Z'x.125 wall Picket
L ||jq L (EEE D
‘ \Weld on Box Hinge it ¢ 1
7 T : = = : PROPOSED ALUMINUM FENCE:
e e Nom. N MANUFACTURER: AMERISTAR FENCE
’I GATE ]PANELSTYP.] STYLE: ECHELON Il CLASSIC
_‘ | § 0.C. Nom. i COLOR: BLACK
2 = e ™Rai DIMENSIONS: 8'-0" WIDTH x 6'-0" HEIGHT
- e 0
L
ELEVATION 2 1/2” Post Size
116'=1-0" g o
5 / 1"[A x .065 Wall Picket
NN
{ | I

—»i [— 3%" TYPICAL

STRUCTURE ON STRUE:TURE Or.:i )
LANGDON PROPERTY LANGDON PROPERTY

°
. \  ANNEX
v\ \ MANSION
\

PLEASANT STREE]

2B REAR FENCE LOCATION & DIMENSIONAL INFORMATION

179 PLEASANT STREET PROPOSED FENCES
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

HDC ADMINISTRATIVE APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL: DECEMBER 4, 2024 CJ ARCHITECTS 5 ® O




i —_— 